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Brad Sutton

From: Brad Sutton

Sent: Thursday, March 27, 2025 1:27 PM

To: Steve Raper; Donna Johnson

Cc: Clint Martz; George Powell; Roger Sullivan; Leslie R. Jackson; Steven Gazlay; Kwizera 

Josephat

Subject: RE: Duke Dunn MSS and OPS: Outbuilding Permits Update 

Steve, 

 

After going back and researching this further in the code, I would tend to agree that this can be classified as S-2, 

which would only require sprinklers if enclosed. I will save the designers comments in the permit information for 

further reference, and approve the plan review. I have also filed the submittal for the weld shop, and approved it 

earlier today. 

 

Thank you, 

 

Brad 

 

From: Steve Raper <Steve.Raper@swinerton.com>  

Sent: Wednesday, March 26, 2025 2:50 PM 

To: Brad Sutton <bsutton@harnett.org>; Donna Johnson <djohnson@harnett.org> 

Cc: Clint Martz <CMartz@swinerton.com>; George Powell <gpowell@daeverettgroup.com>; Roger Sullivan 

<rsullivan@harnett.org>; Leslie R. Jackson <lrjackson@harnett.org>; Steven Gazlay <sgazlay@harnett.org>; Kwizera 

Josephat <KWIZERA.JOSEPHAT@swinerton.com> 

Subject: RE: Duke Dunn MSS and OPS: Outbuilding Permits Update  

 

Brad, 
We have been communicating with the architect regarding the Covered Area (BCOM2502-0012).  It 
appears the structure may have mis-classified when it was submitted. Below are the architects 
comments:  
 

Typically, we’ve classified these types of structures as Low-Hazard Storage Group S-2 which includes 

“Parking Garages, Open or enclosed” and includes “Metal Parts, metals, Oil-Filled and other types of 

distribution transformers, glass, electrical motors and coils, etc.” all of which are items that Duke would 

likely put beneath that canopy. Section 903.2.10 refers to Group S-2 Enclosed Parking Garages and 

903.2.10.1 refers to Commercial Parking Garages, since we are not an Enclosed Parking Garage, we should 

be exempt from this section and the 5000sf determining factor. Which is in alignment with the first part of 

Pak’s email below.  

 

This canopy should not be considered a Moderate-Hazard Storage Group S-1 because our occupancy 

types (listed above) are already classified by the code as S-2 materials. The only reference to vehicles in 

the S-1 category relates to Motor Vehicle Repair Garages, which this canopy is not. Nor will Duke be storing 

any of the other materials listed under the S-1 category. I don’t see anything in Chapter 3 of the occupancy 

code that would change the classification of our structure from S-2 to S-1 based on the duration that a 

vehicle may be parked beneath the canopy. Any vehicles needing actual storage will go into the protected 

MSS building on the property (which is fully sprinklered) – this canopy will be used daily to park vehicles 

while loading and unloading equipment and trailers. It’s not an Enclosed Garage, nor is it a Maintenance 

Repair Garage – it should not be required to be sprinklered. 



2

 
Kindly advise if this exception is acceptable. 
 

Steve Raper 

Project Manager 

SWINERTON  

3915 Beryl Road, Suite 130 

Raleigh, NC 27607 

M 919.523.4604 

E steve.raper@swinerton.com  

 

 

From: Steve Raper  

Sent: Wednesday, March 26, 2025 2:23 PM 

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

 

Hello Brad, 
 
Attached is the exception letter for the 30x30 weld shop as noted below. 
 

Steve Raper 

Project Manager 

SWINERTON  

3915 Beryl Road, Suite 130 

Raleigh, NC 27607 

M 919.523.4604 

E steve.raper@swinerton.com  

 

 

From: Brad Sutton <bsutton@harnett.org>  

Sent: Thursday, March 20, 2025 3:31 PM 

To: Kwizera Josephat <KWIZERA.JOSEPHAT@swinerton.com>; Donna Johnson <djohnson@harnett.org> 

Cc: Steve Raper <Steve.Raper@swinerton.com>; Clint Martz <CMartz@swinerton.com>; George Powell 

<gpowell@daeverettgroup.com>; Roger Sullivan <rsullivan@harnett.org>; Leslie R. Jackson <lrjackson@harnett.org>; 

Steven Gazlay <sgazlay@harnett.org> 

Subject: RE: Duke Dunn MSS and OPS: Outbuilding Permits Update  

 

 

Kwizera, 

 

Thank you for reaching out. Please see my responses below, as well as an email response from the  NCOSFM 

Chief Code Consultant.  

 

 

Weld Shop:  
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Have the designer provide a formal request for exception, along with  acceptance by an owners representative, 

and per 2902.3.2 (Exc) we will approved the exception for restroom travel distance. 

 

 

 

Covered Parking : 

 

Chapter 5 only covers building area and height limitation. Chapter 9 addresses when sprinklers are required, and 

Chapter 2  defines buildings and structures. 

 

 

Building [Ch 2 Def] - Any structure used or intended for supporting or sheltering any use or occupancy. 

 

I have already provided the code reference for the sprinkler requirement in my review notes. 

 

As I assumed this would questioned, as a sprinkler requirement always is, I reached out to NCOSFM Chief Building 

Consultant for clarification. Please see his response below. 

 

 

 

 

Good morning, Brad,  

 

Fire area is defined as the area included within the horizontal projec@on of the roof above even if there is no 

surrounding wall. 

 

FIRE AREA. The aggregate floor area enclosed and 

bounded by fire walls, fire barriers, exterior walls or horizontal 

assemblies of a building. Areas of the building not provided 

with surrounding walls shall be included in the fire area 

if such areas are included within the horizontal projec@on of 

the roof or floor next above. 

 

Commercial motor vehicle is defined as follows: 

 

COMMERCIAL MOTOR VEHICLE. A motor vehicle used to transport passengers or property where the motor vehicle: 

1. Has a gross vehicle weight ra@ng of 10,000 pounds (454 kg) or more; or 

2. Is designed to transport 16 or more passengers, including the driver. 

 

In summary, 

Sec@on 903.2.10.1 shall ONLY apply to enclosed parking garage as it is the subsec@on of Sec@on 903.2.10. Sec@on 

903.2.10.1 is intended to address those facili@es housing larger commercial vehicles. Where a fire area containing 

commercial parking exceeds 5,000 square feet in area, the building housing the vehicles must be sprinklered 

throughout.  

  

In your case, if the “vehicle storage” area is a shelter and open on four sides, in my view, it shall be considered Group S-1 

as the vehicles are not parking but use the shelter as storage. Therefore, the condi@on under Sec@on 903.2.9 shall be 

evaluated for sprinkler requirements.   
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I hope the informa@on above is helpful to you. Please feel free to reach out if you have any more ques@ons or if 

addi@onal informa@on is needed. 

Best regards,  

Pak Keung Yip, P.E.  

Chief Code Consultant   

North Carolina 

Office of State Fire Marshal 

1202 Mail Service Center 

Raleigh, NC 27699-1202 

919.647.0007 

 

 

 

 

 

 

From: Brad Sutton <bsutton@harnett.org>  

Sent: Thursday, February 27, 2025 7:40 AM 

To: Yip, Pak <pak.yip@ncdoi.gov> 

Subject: [External] Open commercial parking shelter 

 

CAUTION: External email. Do not click links or open attachments unless verified. Report suspicious emails with the Report Message 

button located on your Outlook menu bar on the Home tab. 

 

Pak, 

 

I would like to get some clarification on sprinkler requirements. 903.2.9 requires sprinklers for group S-1 for the 

storage of commercial vehicles when the fire area exceeds 5000 sq ft. 

 

This particular structure is just an open shelter. When I read the definition of fire area it is unclear whether this 

would apply, as it mentions enclosed buildings, but goes on to include open areas that are covered. 

 

Any input would be appreciated. 

 

 

Brad Sutton 

Chief Code O@icial 

Manager of Building Services 

Harnett County Inspections Department 

 

910-893-7525 

Direct 910-814-6420 
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From: Kwizera Josephat <KWIZERA.JOSEPHAT@swinerton.com>  

Sent: Thursday, March 20, 2025 2:14 PM 

To: Donna Johnson <djohnson@harnett.org>; Brad Sutton <bsutton@harnett.org> 

Cc: Steve Raper <Steve.Raper@swinerton.com>; Clint Martz <CMartz@swinerton.com>; George Powell 

<gpowell@daeverettgroup.com> 

Subject: RE: Duke Dunn MSS and OPS: Outbuilding Permits Update  

 

Good Afternoon, Donna and Brad  

 

Please see the following statements provided by the designer regarding the comments for the two structures still 

pending permitting: 

 

Weld Shop: 

The designer is requesting the county to allow an exception for this structure per section 2902.3.2., as the Weld 

Shop will be classified as a light industrial occupancy with minimal occupancy. It will primarily be accessed by 

vehicles, as users drive around the site. 

 

Covered Parking: 

The designer has stated that the Covered Parking structure is a fully open canopy, not a building, classified as Type 

II-B construction. It is located more than 80 feet from any adjacent building, which meets the criteria outlined in 

Chapter 5 to not require sprinkling. Additionally, the Duke will primarily store trailers and equipment beneath the 

canopy. Most of the trucks/vehicles are staged in the fleet parking area to the rear of the site or inside the MSS, 

which is sprinklered. 

Let me know if you need further clarification or if additional information is required. 

 

Lastly, I noticed in your email that the street for the project is listed as Longbranch Rd. However, just for 

clarification, this project will be constructed at 1325 Jonesboro Rd Dunn, NC. Please confirm that we are aligned 

on the correct location. 

 

 

Thanks,  

 

Kwizera Josephat 

Project Engineer 

SWINERTON  

3915 Beryl Road, Suite 130 

Raleigh, NC 27607 

M 540.977.8998 

E kwizera.josephat@swinerton.com  

swinerton.com 

 

From: Donna Johnson <djohnson@harnett.org>  

Sent: Tuesday, March 18, 2025 3:47 PM 

To: Kwizera Josephat <KWIZERA.JOSEPHAT@swinerton.com> 

Cc: Steve Raper <Steve.Raper@swinerton.com>; Clint Martz <CMartz@swinerton.com>; George Powell 
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<gpowell@daeverettgroup.com> 

Subject: RE: Duke Dunn MSS and OPS: Outbuilding Permits Update  

 

 

As I said in the previous email the canopy is the only one approved.  I apologize if I did not 

make it clear enough.  
���� I have notes down below for the other two projects at 

Longbranch Rd. 

 

Weld Shop    

Brad Sutton  910-814-6420 
COMMERCIAL 

BUILDING REVIEW 

Plans are ok , however welding shop cannot exceed 500 ft travel distance to restroom 

facilities in adjacent building(s). Provide correction. 
 

3/7/2025 11:03:13 AM 

 

 

Covered Parking 

Brad Sutton  910-814-6420 
COMMERCIAL 

BUILDING REVIEW 

Per 2018 NCBC section 903.2.9, Group S-1 for the storage of 

commercial vehicles exceeding 5,000 sq ft shall be sprinklered. 
 

3/6/2025 11:03:26 AM  

 

 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 
 
Donna Johnson 
Project Coordinator / Customer Service Rep.   
Development Services  

 

(910) 814-6431 | djohnson@harnett.org  

420 McKinney Parkway (physical) | PO Box 65 (mailing) | Lillington, NC 27546 
  
https://www.harnett.org/permits/ 
Privacy & Confidentiality Notice  
Email correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and shall be 
disclosed to third parties when required by statutes. (NCGS Ch. 132) 

 

 

From: Kwizera Josephat <KWIZERA.JOSEPHAT@swinerton.com>  

Sent: Tuesday, March 18, 2025 12:12 PM 

To: Donna Johnson <djohnson@harnett.org> 

Cc: Steve Raper <Steve.Raper@swinerton.com>; Clint Martz <CMartz@swinerton.com>; George Powell 
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<gpowell@daeverettgroup.com> 

Subject: RE: Duke Dunn MSS and OPS: Outbuilding Permits Update  

 

Good Afternoon, Donna 

 

I am following up with my pervious email, regarding with the plan review for the outbuildings to see if there have 

been any updates on the approval status for the remaining structures (Covered Parking and Weld Shop).  

 

Please feel free to reach out if there are any additional documents or clarification needed.  

 

Thank you once again for your assistance and help.  

 

 

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

Sent: Wednesday, March 12, 2025 12:00 PM 

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

 

 

Sounds good, thank you. 

 

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

Sent: Wednesday, March 12, 2025 10:33 AM 

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

 

Donna,  

 

Thank you for the update, I will reach back out in the next couple of days regarding the permits for the remaining 

two structures that are still under review. 

 

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

Sent: Tuesday, March 11, 2025 4:42 PM 

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

 

 

The only one completely approved is the canopy.   

 

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

Sent: Tuesday, March 11, 2025 2:36 PM 

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

 

I am following up with your pervious email, regarding with the plan review for the outbuildings to see if there have 

been any updates.  

 

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

Sent: Wednesday, March 5, 2025 11:30 AM 

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

 

 

Good morning, Kwizera.  The plan review for building is not resulted as of yet.  Please 

check back around the 11th for review status.  Fire marshal has approved theirs, except for 

the covered parking.  That is under review now.  

 

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

Sent: Wednesday, March 5, 2025 11:20 AM 

To: Donna Johnson <djohnson@harnett.org> 

Cc: Steve Raper <Steve.Raper@swinerton.com>; Clint Martz <CMartz@swinerton.com>; George Powell 

<gpowell@daeverettgroup.com> 

Subject: Duke Dunn MSS and OPS: Outbuilding Permits Update  

 

Good Morning, Donna  

 

I recently left you a voicemail, as I wanted to see if there have been any updates regarding the outbuilding (60x80 

Canopy, Covered Parking, Weld Shops) permits for the Duke Energy project in Dunn and when Swinerton can 

anticipate on receiving the permits.  

 

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

 




